
 

 
Birmingham Shopping District Agenda 
Thursday October 3, 2019 - 8 a.m. 
 
The Community House 
380 South Bates Street, Birmingham, MI  48009 
 
 
 

 
 

1. Call to order and Roll Call of Board 
2. Recognition of Visitors 
3. Approval of Minutes for September 5, 2019 
4. Board Member Comments 
5. Reports: 

a. Finance Report  
b. Executive Director Report – Tighe 
c. Committee Reports: 

i. Special Events – Astrein 
ii. Marketing & Advertising – Pohlod 
iii. Maintenance and Capital Improvements – Quintal 
iv. Business Development – Surnow 
v. Executive Board Report – Hockman 

d. Parking Report – August 2019  
e. Chamber Report 

6. Approval of Vouchers   
7. Unfinished Business 
8. New Business 
      a.   Hanging Baskets Agreement Extension 
      b.   Planters Agreement Extension 
9. Information 

a. Announcements 
b. Letters, Board Attendance & Monthly Meeting Schedule 

10. Public Comments 
11. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                          Birmingham Shopping District Mission Statement 
We strive to provide leadership in marketing, advertising and promotion of the Birmingham Shopping District. 
 
We actively work to promote a district that is exciting, clean, safe and pedestrian-friendly and ensure that the 
district continues to serve as a center for business, service, social and community activities. 
 
Notice: Persons with disabilities that may require assistance for effective participation in this public meeting should contact 
the City Clerk’s Office at the number (248) 530-1880, or (248) 644-5115 (for the hearing impaired) at least one day before 
the meeting to request help in mobility, visual, hearing, or other assistance.  
Las personas con incapacidad que requieren algún tipo de ayuda para la participación en esta sesión pública deben 
ponerse en contacto con la oficina del escribano de la ciudad en el número (248) 530-1800 o al (248) 644-5115 (para las 
personas con incapacidad auditiva) por lo menos un dia antes de la reunión para solicitar ayuda a la movilidad, visual, 
auditiva, o de otras asistencias. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 



 

9/19/2019            1 

City of Birmingham 
Birmingham Shopping District Proceeding 
Thursday, September 5, 2019 - 8:00 a.m. 

The Community House 
Birmingham, MI  48009  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Birmingham Shopping District Board held Thursday, September 5, 
2019, at 8:03 a.m. in The Community House. 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL OF BOARD  
 

PRESENT: Astrein, Fehan, Hockman, Kay, Pohlod, Quintal, Roberts, Surnow, Valentine 
 
ABSENT: Eid, Solomon 

 
 ALSO PRESENT: Joe Bauman 
 
 ADMINISTRATION: Tighe, Brook 
 
 
2.  RECOGNITION OF VISITORS 
  
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 
MOTION:  Motion by Fehan, seconded by Astrein to approve the minutes dated August 1, 2019.  

 
   VOTE:  Yeas, 9   Nays, 0   Absent, 2 

 
 
4.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
5.  REPORTS  
 

a. FINANCE REPORT –  TIGHE 
  
Tighe shared that the revenue and expense report shows charges to the auto parking system with an 
increased amount due to valet and marketing for the upcoming Maple Road reconstruction project. The 
$150,000 will cover $75,000 for valet, $50,000 for marketing and $25,000 annual holiday budget. 
 
The cash flow report will show higher expenditures are indicated for marketing and advertising in March, 
April and May to plan for additional payments during construction. 
 
 

b. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT - TIGHE 
 
No report given 
 

c. COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS - ASTREIN    
 



 

9/19/2019            2 

Astrein reported that the Movie Night series went very well with high attendance and a significant increase in 
sponsorship. 
 
The Birmingham Cruise event was successful with good weather a great crowd and a lot of classic cars. 
Tighe shared a Cruise summary highlighting all of the different city departments that were involved in this 
event. 
 
Farmers Market is continuing to go well. Harvest Fest will be taking place on Sunday, September 15th. 
 
The committee is focusing on holiday events – Small Business Saturday, Santa Walk and Winter Markt. 
 
Hockman thanked Brook for her hard work during a busy summer season. 
 
 
MARKETING & ADVERTISING - POHLOD 
 
Pohlod updated everyone they have met with Paige regarding items that need to be improved with social 
media. She said that they are seeing some improvements and will continue to meet on a regular basis. 
 
The photo shoot for the next Birmingham Magazine took place at Pernoi and went very well. The committee 
is impressed with the production team. A first draft should be available for proofing in the next week. Pohlod 
asked board members to please confirm their ad space in the magazine with the representative from 
Renaissance Media. 
 
 
MAINTENANCE/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - QUINTAL 
 
Quintal reported that they have ordered new holiday lights for N. Old Woodward. They have also gotten 
prices for new planter ideas and think that they would like to have something more uniform for the 
hanging baskets and the planters next year. 
 
Astrein asked if it is in the budget to do more ice removal. Quintal explained that they will do what they 
can, but if there is another really bad day, like there was last year, they will not be able to keep up. 
 
 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT - SURNOW 
 
Surnow shared that Cindy has been very busy and there has been a lot of interest in Surnow’s available 
properties. He feels that good collaboration with property owners and Cindy has been very helpful and that 
this is very different from a few years ago. 
 
Tighe agreed that Cindy has been persistent and had regular communication with Tighe and interested 
parties and there are currently some very strong leads. Valentine said that the efforts are paying off and that 
it shows in the numbers. 
 
Surnow updated the board that the Lyft contract is almost done. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE BOARD REPORT - HOCKMAN 
 
Hockman reminded the board that Maple Rd. construction will be taking place in the spring/summer of 
2020. To help prepare for this, the committee chairs from the BSD’s four committees will be meeting 
and working to put together a cohesive plan. 
 
 



 

9/19/2019            3 

d. PARKING REPORT - VALENTINE 
 
Valentine gave an update that the ballot initiative for the new parking structure did not pass. The Advisory 
Parking Committee has been tasked with looking at other options to expand capacity. Although numbers 
were a little lower over the summer, three of five structures are full on a regular basis. 
 
 

e. CHAMBER REPORT - BAUMAN 
 
Bauman reminded the board that their annual Vine and Dine is scheduled for September 17th at the Double 
Tree Kingsley. They also have a community leadership breakfast on October 16th and their Halloween parade 
on October 27th. 
 
The Chamber would like to partner with the BSD on initiatives to help businesses during the upcoming 
construction period. 
 

f. COMMUNITY HOUSE REPORT 
 
There was no report from The Community House. 
 
 
6.  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS 

 
MOTION:  Motion by Fehan, seconded by Astrein to approve the vouchers, as submitted, dated 
September 5, 2019.  
 
VOTE:   Yeas, 9   Nays, 2   Absent, 0 
 
 

7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
   
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 

 
 

9.   INFORMATION 
       a.  Retail Activity 
       b.  Announcements  
       c.  Letters, Board Attendance & Monthly Meeting Schedule 
               
10.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Tighe shared that there will be a merchant meeting on September 18th that will have a construction 
update. 
 
 
11.  ADJOURNMENT – 8:39 A.M.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Jaimi Brook (back-up notes on file) 
 

















 

 
Special Events Committee 
 
 
Members: Astrein (Chair), Fehan, Hussey, Kay, Knight, 
Pohlod and Solomon 
 
Staff: Tighe, Brook 
 

            
 
    1. No meeting was held in September 

 
2.    Farmers Market 

a. Harvest Fest was held on September 15th. Fifty vendors and six sponsors participated and 
over 3,300 people attended. 

b. The End of Season Celebration will be held on October 27th. 
 

3. Holiday Events 
c. Plans are underway to once again hold a Santa Walk on Small Business Saturday 

(November 30) to welcome Santa to town. 
d. Santa House and carriage rides will begin on November 30th and run weekends through 

Christmas Eve with extended hours during Winter Markt and on December 21st. They will 
also be open on December 24th. 

e. Applications for Winter Markt vendors are available at 
www.ALLinBirmingham.com/wintermarkt. Close to 20 vendor applications have already 
been received. 

f. The theme for this year’s Window Decorating Contest is “Let it Snow”. Merchants are 
asked to have their windows ready for judging by December 5th. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upcoming Events 
May 5 – October 27 – Birmingham Farmers Market 17th Season 
October 27 – End of Season Celebration at the Farmers Market 
November 30 – Santa Walk/Small Business Saturday 
December 6 – 8 – Birmingham Winter Markt 
 
NEXT MEETING: Friday, October 11, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. 
 
2019-20 Budget:  $200,000 
Remaining balance after October vouchers:  $151,424 

http://www.allinbirmingham.com/wintermarkt


   

 
Marketing & Advertising Committee Meeting  
September 19, 2019 
 
Members:  Pohlod (Chair), Benkert, Champagne, Eid, Kay, 
Knight and Lundberg 
 
Staff:  Tighe, Gamboa 
 

 
1. Welcome and Introductions 

PRESENT: Kay, Knight, Pohlod 
ABSENT: Benkert, Champagne, Eid, Lundberg  
ADMINISTRATION: Gamboa, Tighe 
VISITOR: Gill, Amy 
 

2. Maple Road Reconstruction 
The committee discussed the 2020 Maple Road Reconstruction project. BSD staff members 
are looking at different companies for administering the Birmingham Bonus Bucks Program. 
Special events and valet parking will also be offered during construction.  
 

3. Holiday Advertising 
The committee reviewed proposed holiday budget allocation for print, digital, signage and 
broadcast placements. The committee would like more funds allocated toward digital 
placements and less toward broadcast (TV commercials). Again this year the BSD will sponsor 
Local 4’s Live in the D 12 Days of Christmas promotion. Seven businesses will donate prizes 
worth $257 and enjoy exposure throughout the promotion. 

 
4. Birmingham Magazine 

The committee reviewed photos from the Birmingham Magazine photoshoot and selected 
images for the cover spread. BSD staff and committee members are very pleased with the 
photos. Renaissance Media is continuing to secure advertising placements. Draft pages of the 
magazine will be ready by September 26, revisions will be submitted by October 3 and 
updated pages will be provided to the BSD by October 9. 
 

5. Renaissance Media Video 
Renaissance Media representative Amy Gill joined the committee to discuss a promotional 
video that is included in the Birmingham Magazine contract. The video will be 60-90 seconds 
and provide an overview of the City. It will be used via social media and also sent to potential 
new businesses. The committee would like the video to: attract new businesses, attract people 
to the downtown area, and focus on lifestyle (how to spend your whole day in Birmingham). 

 
NEXT MEETING: Thursday, October 10, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. 
 
Marketing 2019-20 Budget:  $150,000 
Remaining balance after October vouchers:  $107,841 
 
Construction 2019-20 Budget:  $100,000 
Remaining balance after October vouchers:  $100,000 
 
Magazine 2019-20 Budget:  $60,000 
Remaining balance after October vouchers:  $15,054 



 

Maintenance/Capital Improvement Committee  
 

 
Members: Quintal (Chair), Fehan, Pohlod, Roberts, Ceresnie 
 
Staff:  Tighe, Wood, Laird, McGaughey, Jurek 
 

 

1. No meeting was held in September 
 

2. Holiday Planters: 
a. The committee would like to explore holiday planter decorations such as birch 
      branches, greenery, etc. for the upcoming holiday season.  

 
3. Hanging Baskets and Planters: 

a. As per the contract agreements for the hanging flower baskets and planters, the BSD 
has the option to extend the contracts for a third year. The extension agreements are 
included in new business in the board packet. 

 
4. Maple Road Reconstruction: 

a. The committee is preparing for the upcoming Maple Rd. construction and will oversee 
and implement the construction valet, construction signage, merchant signs, and 
construction lighting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEXT MEETING:  Tuesday, October 8, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. in City Hall  
 

2019-20 Budget:  $100,000  
Remaining balance after October vouchers:  $64,629 
 
Snow removal 2019-20 Budget:  $59,000  
Remaining balance after October vouchers:  $59,000 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 
PRESENT: Surnow, Quintal, McKenzie, Kay 
ABSENT: Hockman 
ADMINISTRATION: Tighe 
GUESTS: Cindy Ciura, CC Consulting  
 

2. Retention and growth 

a. Tighe is working with Lyft on a rebate program. She is waiting to get contract back from 

Lyft’s legal counsel. 

b. Committee discussed topics for a “speaker series” to help businesses with their growth 

and expansion: Social media, Branding, e-commerce, Oakland County Business 

Resource Center, etc. 

c. Gift certificates 

 

3. Tenant recruitment process 

a. CC Consulting continues to follow up with retailers from ICSC meetings and also is 

speaking with retailers on our target list. 

b. Marketing – committee discussed the BSD’s updated photos of available properties, 

drone footage, video footage, ads (SCT, Shopping Center Business, DBusiness, 

Crain's, etc.) 

c. Cindy will attend the ICSC NY conference in December. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NEXT MEETING: Thursday, October 24, 2019 at 8:30 AM 

2019-20 Budget:  $100,000  

Remaining after October vouchers:  $80,926 

       

Business Development Committee Meeting 
September 26, 2019 

Members: Surnow (Chair), Hockman, Quintal, McKenzie 

Staff: Tighe 





















1 
 
 

  MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
DATE:   September 24, 2019 
 
TO:   Birmingham Shopping District Board 
 
FROM:  Ingrid Tighe, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: Item 8A Extension of Agreement with Worry Free, Inc. for Hanging Baskets 
 
 
The BSD agreement with Worry Free, Inc. for hanging baskets has concluded its term and requires 
board action to extend the agreement for one year. 
 
Worry Free, Inc. has installed the hanging baskets since 2010.  The pricing per basket will remain the 
same for the upcoming year.  The BSD staff and Maintenance Committee are pleased with their work 
and recommend continuation of the agreement. 
 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION Item 8A:  To approve extension of the agreement with Worry Free, Inc. for 
hanging flower baskets for the 2020 summer season. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO HANGING BASKETS AGREEMENT 
 

  
 
 This First Amendment, made this 3rd day of October, 2019, by and between 
Birmingham Principal Shopping District, having its principal office at 151 Martin Street, 
Birmingham, Michigan (hereinafter “PSD”), and Worry Free Lawn Care & Snow 
Removal, Inc. d/b/a Worry Free, Inc., whose address is P.O. Box 1221, Royal Oak, 
Michigan (hereinafter “Contractor”), provides as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, the PSD and Contractor entered into a contract entitled Birmingham 
Principal Shopping 2018/2019 Hanging Baskets Agreement (“Agreement”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement was extended through the 2020 planting and 
maintenance obligations;  
 
 WHEREAS, the PSD and the Contractor desire to extend the Agreement under the 
terms and conditions set forth herein to include 2020; 
 
 WHEREAS, in lieu of drafting a new contract for the term extension, the parties 
desire to enter into this First Amendment and incorporate the terms and conditions 
contained in the Agreement as though fully set forth with the terms of this First 
Amendment having the same legal affect as those currently found in the previous 
documents. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. All terms of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are 
incorporated herein by reference, except as amended herein. 

 
2. The term of the Agreement shall be extended through the 2020 season, 

unless terminated sooner under the terms of the Agreement. 
 
3. This First Amendment shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Michigan.   
 
4. This First Amendment shall amend the Agreement, and no further 

modification shall be binding upon the parties unless set forth in writing and signed by 
both parties. 

 





1 
 
 

  MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
DATE:   September 24, 2019 
 
TO:   Birmingham Shopping District Board 
 
FROM:  Ingrid Tighe, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: Item 8B Extension of Agreement with Mosher Associates, Inc. for Summer 

Flower Planters 
 
 
The BSD agreement with Mosher Associates for summer planters has concluded its term and requires 
board action to extend the agreement for one year. 
 
Mosher has decorated the summer planters since 2010.  The BSD staff and Maintenance Committee 
are pleased with their work and recommend continuation of the agreement. 
 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION Item 8B: To approve a one year extension of the agreement with Mosher 
Associates, Inc. for summer flower planters for the 2020 season. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO SPRING/SUMMER  
PLANTINGS FLORAL AGREEMENT 

 
  
 This First Amendment, made this 3rd day of October, 2019, by and between 
Birmingham Principal Shopping District, having its principal office at 151 Martin Street, 
Birmingham, Michigan (hereinafter “PSD”), and Mosher & Associates, LLC, whose 
address is 2725 Nakota, Royal Oak, Michigan (hereinafter “Contractor”), provides as 
follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, the PSD and Contractor entered into a contract entitled Birmingham 
Principal Shopping District 2018/2019 BIRMINGHAM SPRING/SUMMER FLORAL 
PLANTERS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the PSD and the Contractor desire to extend the Agreement under the 
terms and conditions set forth herein to include 2020; 
 
 WHEREAS, in lieu of drafting a new contract for the term extension, the parties 
desire to enter into this First Amendment and incorporate the terms and conditions 
contained in the Agreement as though fully set forth with the terms of this First 
Amendment having the same legal affect as those currently found in the previous 
documents. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. All terms of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are 
incorporated herein by reference, except as amended herein. 

 
2. The term of the Agreement shall be extended through the 2020 season, 

unless terminated sooner under the terms of the Agreement. 
 
3. This First Amendment shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Michigan.   
 
4. This First Amendment shall amend the Agreement, and no further 

modification shall be binding upon the parties unless set forth in writing and signed by 
both parties. 

 
5. Except as set forth above and as otherwise may be in conflict with this First 

Amendment, the other provisions in the Agreement are unaffected by this First 
Amendment and shall remain in force. 
 





Name of Board: Year: 2019
Members Required for Quorum: 7

MEMBER NAME JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
Richard Astrein P P P P P P P P P 9 0 100%
Samy Eid P P A P P A P P P 7 2 78%
Doug Fehan A A P P P A P P P 6 3 67%
Geoffrey Hockman P A P A P P P P P 7 2 78%
Zachary Kay P P P P P P P P P 9 0 100%
Amy Pohlod P A P P P P P P P 8 1 89%
Steve Quintal P P P P P A P P P 8 1 89%
Bill Roberts P P P P P P P P P 9 0 100%
Judy Solomon P P P P A P P P A 7 2 78%
Sam Surnow A P P P P P P P P 8 1 89%
Joe Valentine P P P P P P P P P 9 0 100%

0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Present or Available 9 8 10 10 10 8 11 11 10 0 0 0 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

Birmingham Shopping District



 
 
 
 

Birmingham Shopping 
District 151 Martin Street 

             Birmingham, MI  48009 
                                                                248-530-1200 
 
 
 
 

 
BSD COMMITTEES 

MONTHLY MEETING SCHEDULE 
OCTOBER 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
BSD BOARD THURSDAY 10/3 @ 8:00 AM – COMMUNITY HOUSE 
 
MAINTENANCE/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TUESDAY 10/8 @ 8:30 AM – CITY HALL 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS FRIDAY 10/11 @ 8:30 AM – CITY HALL 
 
MARKETING/ADVERTISING THURSDAY 10/10 @ 8:30 AM – CITY HALL 
 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT THURSDAY 10/24 @ 8:30 AM – CITY HALL 
 
EXECUTIVE WEDNESDAY 10/2 @ 8:00 AM – CITY HALL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE:  City Hall meeting location is second floor conference room 202-203. 
 

Notice: Individuals requiring accommodations, such as interpreter services, for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 at least one day in advance of the public meeting. 

 
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 


	Birmingham Shopping District Agenda
	Thursday October 3, 2019 - 8 a.m.
	The Community House380 South Bates Street, Birmingham, MI  48009

	OCTOBER attendance report.pdf
	Sheet1


